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2 INntroduction

The Construction of Krung Ratanakosin (Bangkok)

The Kingdom of Thailand has a history stretching back 800 years, and there
have been four capital cities, namely, Krung Sukhothai, Krung Sri Ayutthaya, Krung
Thonburi and Krung Ratanakosin (Bangkok).

King Rama | moved the capital, now Bangkok, to the east bank of the Chao
Phraya River and held an abbreviated victory coronation ceremony on 10" June
1782. He named the new capital “Ratanakosin Indra Ayothaya.”

King Rama Il renamed the capital as “Krung Thep Mahanakhon Boworn
Ratanakosin Mahin Ayutthaya.” and it was renamed once again in the reign of King
Rama IV as “Krung Thep Mahanakhon Amorn Ratanakosin Mahintharayutthaya
Mahadilokphop Nopharat Ratchathanee Burirom Udomratchanivet Mahasathan
Amornphimarn Awatan Sathit Sakkathatiya Visanukamprasit.” The capital has retained

this name since then, which is usually shortened to “Krung Thep Mahanakhon.”

The Construction of the Grand Palace

When King Rama | decided to create a new capital, he also began construction
of a new palace on 6" May 1782, which was at first built entirely of wood and
surrounded by a log wall. He held an abbreviated victory coronation on 10" June
1782, and on 13" June that year he travelled in a waterborne procession to his
palace, where another coronation was held, thus becoming the first monarch of the

Chakri dynasty.

Construction of the capital and the Grand Palace, which occupies an area of
approximately 132 rai began in earnest in 1783, as did the construction of the
fortifications and gates surrounding the palace. In the Second Reign, the Grand
Palace was expanded to the south and more forts were added increasing the total
area to |52 rai 2 ngan.The lengths of the walls were 410 meters on the northern
side, 510 meters on the eastern side, 360 meters on the southern side and 630
meters on the western side, and remain unchanged until the present day.

The architecture of the Grand Palace is exceedingly beautiful, combining
religious and royal significance, a tradition inherited from the former capital of

Ayutthaya.

The Construction of the Temple of the Emerald Buddha
Construction of Wat Phra Sri Ratanasasadaram (the Temple of the Emerald
Buddha) as the Royal Chapel within the Grand Palace followed an ancient tradition,
that of Wat Mahathat which was built inside the grounds of Sukhothai's royal
palace and Wat Phra Sri Sanphetch the royal temple built inside the grounds of
Ayutthaya royal palace. In accordance with this tradition the Wat Phra Sri
Ratanasasadaram was built inside the grounds of the Grand Palace to house the
city's Emerald Buddha Image. Construction of the temple began in 1783 and was
completed in 1785. In accordance with ancient practice King Rama | then held

another coronation in Wat Phra Sri Ratanasasadaram in 1785.
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The Grand Palace

The Grand Palace is surrounded by Sanam Luang to the west, Sanam Chai
to the east, Maharaj Road to the west and Thy Wang road to the south.

The white painted walls of the Grand Palace are constructed of bricks and
mortar. There are a total of 17 forts, or battlements built atop the walls. A portion of
the east wall forms the lower part of the eastern wall of the Sutthaisawan Prasat
Throne Hall.

The Palace is divided into four areas, namely:

The Outer Zone, situated at the front of the palace on the northern side,
is where various government offices are situated, including those for military officials,
civil officials, the harbor department and the royal treasury.

The Middle Zone, situated at the center of the palace, where the Phra
Mahaprasart and Phra Ratchamonthien are located, was until 1925 the residence of
the king, the queen, the princes, the princesses, the royal concubines, ladies-in-waiting
and female officials.

The Inner Zone, at the rear of the Grand Palace includes the buildings where
members of the royal family and royal attendants,as well as princes under |3 years of
age used to reside.

Sanam Chai is a small lawn within the walls of the Grand Palace situated on
the eastern side in front of Sala Sahathai Samakhom and near the walls of the Emerald
Buddha Temple located to the north.

The Temple of the Emerald Buddha, is a royal temple situated within
the Grand Palace in accordance with ancient tradition.

Sanam Luang (Phra Meru ground), located outside the walls of the Grand
Palace and to its front, was copied from Ayutthaya and is used for various royal
ceremonies.

The Grand Palace was the residence of the kings, queens, princes, princesses,
ladies-in-waiting and officials from 783 until 1925.

Picture : The Grand Palace and the Temple of the Emerald Buddha, viewed from Sanam Luang,
during the kite-flying season.
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Wat Phra Sri Ratanasasadaram

Wat Phra Sri Ratanasasadaram, familiarly called the “Temple of the Emerald
Buddha”, houses the Emerald Buddha Image and was constructed in 1783.

The temple has an area to house Buddha images but lacks accommodation to
house monks. The temple is enclosed by walls on four sides. The inner wall forms a
gallery for mural paintings depicting the story of the Ramakian in its entirety. There
are seven entrances to the temple.

On the western side there are 3 gates known as the Hermit, the Koeysadet
(Rear) and the Sanam Chai Gates. On the eastern side, there are 2 gates, the Koeysadet
(Front) and NaWua Gates. The Koeysadet (Front) Gate,in particular, is very beautiful.
On the northern side, there is only one gate, theViharn Yord Gate and on the southern
side, there is also only one gate, namely the Sri Ratanasasada Gate, which leads to the
middle zone of the Grand Palace.

The temple houses various religious structures and objects including :

- the Phra Ubosot

- the Emerald Buddha Image

- the Sala Rai around the Phra Ubosot

- the Ratchaphongsanusorn Buddha Image Hall

- the Ratchakoramanusorn Buddha Image Hall

- the Bell Tower

- the Khanthararat Buddha Image Hall

- the Phra Mondop

- the Monthientham Buddha Image Hall

- the Nag Buddha Image Hall

- the Viharn Yod Buddha Image Hall

- the Prasat Phra Thep Bidorn

- the Phra Sri Ratana Chedi

- the cast metal elephants (arranged around the Phra Mondop)

- the miniature Angkor Wat

- the stone Buddha images and the Eight Spires.

Picture : The Temple of the Emerald Buddha with the boundary walls on the west and the Sanam
Chai lawn at the front.
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Mural Paintings on the Gallery Walls

Phra Rabiang is the wall that surrounds the entire temple of the Emerald
Buddha. The murals on the walls of this gallery depict the story of Ramakian in its
entirety with short captions beneath the pictures. The gallery is divided into 178
chambers.

The story of Ramakian begins in the first chamber at Gate No.7 on the right,
opposite the Viharn Yod, while on the left is the final segment of the Ramakian, in
chamber No. 178, In addition, the murals on the columns and the walls leading
from the gates relate 80 episodes of Phra Narai's story before his avatarn
(reincarnation) as Phra Ram.

King Rama | was himself the author of the most complete edition of Ramakian,
beginning with the episode of the giant Hiranyak rolling up the earth and Phra Narai
vanquishing him, construction of Ayutthaya, the war between humans and giants,
leading to Phra Ram and Naang Sida finally ruling Ayutthaya.

The Ramakian murals were painted in accordance with King Rama I's edition
of the Ramakian.

In the Third Reign, the murals were erased and repainted and were again
repaired in the Fifth Reign, to mark the capital’s centenary. The murals were
repaired for a third time in the Seventh Reign in 1932 to mark 150 years of the
capital's existence. The most recent repairs to the murals were made in 1982, in the

present reign, to mark the capital's bicentenary.

Picture : Mural paintings depicting episodes from Ramakian, northern gallery.
] 3 g ef £ Y.
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Gate No. |, Koeysadet (Front) Gate

The Koeysadet (Front) Gate, on the eastern side of the temple, is in front of
Prasat Phra Thep Bidorn and opposite the Grand Palace's Sawadsopha Gate. This is
an important gate built in the Fourth Reign. The gate has a ramp for mounting
elephants and an undressing pavilion. The top of the gate forms a pointed crown.

The murals on the walls of the gate depict Thao ahasadecha (a giant), Nilaphat
(a monkey), Hanuman (a monkey) and Thosakan (a giant). In front of the gate, inside
the temple, two 6-meter tall plaster giants beautifully decorated with glazed colored
tiles, stand guard. They are Suriyaphob, on the left, and Indrachit, on the right.

Suriyaphob, a giant with a bright red body, was the son of Thao Chakrawad,
ruler of Krung Maliwan and friend of Thosakan. He holds the Mekhaphat spear,
which was given to him as a weapon by Phra Isuan. The spear was very potent and
had magical power. After a thousand incantations, not even the angels could
withstand it. According to legend the spear was thrown at Phra Satarut and made
him faint. Suriyaphob, the giant was slain by Phra Phrot using his Phrommat arrow.

Indrachit, a giant with a green body, was the beloved son of Thosakan and
Naang Montho. His name was originally “Ronaphak Kumarn” because of his potent
powers. Because he defeated Phra Indra, his name was changed to Indrachit.
He was given sacred weapons by Phra Isuan, Brahma, and Phra Narai including the
Phrommat, Nagabat and Vishnupanam arrows. Finally Indrachit, like Mangkornkan
before him, was killed by Phra Ram’s Phrommat arrow.

Picture : The giants Suriyaphob (left) and Indrachit (right) , guarding Koeysadet (front) Gate.
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Gate No. 2, NaWua Gate

The Na Wua Gate is on the eastern side of the temple, directly opposite
the Phra Ubosot, or chapel. A pair of bronze oxen, used in the Plowing Ceremony
in the First Reign, stand near to the gate. Passing through the gate enables visitors
to view the six spires, out of a total of eight, which stand outside the gallery.

Murals along both sides of the entrance depict Suriyaphob (a giant),
Nilpanan (a monkey) and Ongkhot (a monkey). In front of the gate, inside the temple,
two 6-meter tall plaster giants beautifully decorated with glazed colored tiles, stand
guard.They are Mangkornkan, on the left, and Virulhok, on the right.

Mangkornkan, a giant with a green body, was the son of Phya Khon, ruler of
Romkhal City and friend of Thosakan. He was Thoraphee, an ungrateful buffalo,
that had been reincarnated as a giant and who was cursed by Phra Isuan to die by
Phra Rams arrow. Finally, Mangkornkan was indeed killed by Phra Ram's Phrommat
arrow.

Virulhok, a giant with a dark blue body, was the ruler of Maha Anthakarn,
the subterranean world. He once caused Mount Krailart, the abode of Phra Isuan,
to subside. This happened when he went for an audience with Phra Isuan and was
affronted by a gecko which cried out at his every step as he bowed to Phra Isuan.
In anger; he threw a sash at the gecko, which caused such a tremor that the Krailart

mountain subsided.

Picture : The giants Mangkornkan (left) and Virulhok (right), guarding Na Wua Gate.
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Gate No. 3, Phra Sri Ratanasasada Gate

This gate, on the northern side of the temple, connects to the middie zone
of the Grand Palace and permitted those residing in the palace at the time to enter
the temple to make merit.The gate is now the exit gate for tourists and other visitors.

Murals along both sides of the entrance depict Nilkhan (a monkey), while the
panels of the gate depict Suphanmacha (female giant-half fish), Kakanasoon (female
giant-half bird), Samanakha (female giant) and Benyakai (female giant). At the front
of the gate, inside the temple, two 6-meter tall plaster giants beautifully decorated
with glazed colored tiles, stand guard. They are Thosagirithorn on the left and
Thosagirivan, on the right.

Thosagirithorn was the son of Thosakan and an Elephant. His body was
light brown in color and the tip of his nose was an elephant’s trunk. Thao Asakan-
mara, the ruler of Duram City and a friend of Thosakan, asked Tosakan forThosagirithorn
so that he could raise him as an adopted son. Thosagirithorn was armed with
a magical bow and arrows which, when shot, separated into nine different types of
weapons but he was none the less killed by an arrow shot by Phra Lak.

Thosagirivan was the twin giant of Thosagirithorn. His body was light green
and the tip of his nose was an elephant's trunk. Thao Asakan-mara also adopted
him as a son. He, like Thosagirithorn, was also armed with a magical bow and arrows
which, when shot, separated into nine different types of weapons. Finally, like his
twin brother, he was also killed by an arrow shot by Phra Lak.

Picture : The giants Thosagirithorn (left) and Thosagirivan (right), guarding Phra Sri Ratanasasada
Gate.
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Gate No. 4, Hermit Gate

The Hermit Gate is located at the back of the Sahathai Samakhom Building.
At present the gate is used by tourists as an entrance to the temple. Inside, there is a
statue of the hermit Cheewaka Komarapach which has healing powers.

Murals along both sides of the entrance depict Thao Asakan-mara (a giant),
Nilaraj (a monkey), Khomut (a monkey) and Thao Chakrawad (a giant). At the front
of the gate, inside the temple, two 6-meter tall plaster giants, beautifully decorated
with glazed colored tiles, stand guard. They are Chakrawad, on the left and Asakan-
mara, on the right.

Chakrawad, a chief of giants possessed a white body, was a friend of Thosakan
and the ruler of Maliwan City. He had strong magical powers. His city was protected
by a ring of fire and had an acid frontier. He assumed an important role in the story
of Ramakian after the death of Thosakan as leader of an army to retake Lanka City
from Thao Thosagiriwong (Phiphek) and to return it to Phaina Suriyawong, a son of
Thosakan and Naang Montho. Chakrawad changed Phaina Suriyawong's name to
Thao Thosaphin who then ruled Lanka city.

Asakan-mara, also a chief of giants, possessed a purple body and was the
ruler of Duram City and a friend of Thosakan. He was also known as Asakan- marasoon.
Asakan-mara was given a special blessing by Phra Isuan whereby any part of his
body that was severed would become another body. The more body parts severed,
the more new bodies would be formed. Finally,Asakan-mara was struck by a Phrommat
arrow from Phra Rams bow and the power of the arrow was such that it blew all
his body parts into a river thus preventing them from forming new bodies and he

was killed.

Picture : The giants Chakrawad (left) and Asakan-mara (right), guarding Hermit Gate.
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Gate No. 5, Koeysadet (Rear) Gate

The Koeysadet (Rear) Gate is the middle gate on the western side. The road
passing in front of Sala Sahathai Samakhom passes by this gate. In front of the gate,
there is a ramp for mounting elephants and an undressing pavilion. The gate is kept
permanently shut.

Murals along both sides of the entrance depict Machanu (a son of Hanuman
and Suphanmacha) and Tri-Sian and Asthada (both giants). At the front of the gate,
inside the temple, two 6-meter tall plaster giants beautifully decorated with glazed
colored tiles, stand guard. They are Thosakan on the left and Sahasadecha on the
right.

Thosakan, or Ravana, a giant with a green body, was the ruler of Lanka City.
He had 10 faces and 20 hands and each hand was armed with a weapon. His chief
consort was Naang Montho while the next in rank was Naang Kal-akee. Thosakan
was the reincarnation of Nonthok (the giant who washed the feet of angels on
Mount Krailat.) He was the father of Naang Sida, whose mother was Naang Montho,
but because he was unaware of this fact he went to war with Phra Ram to win Naang
Sida in the story of Ramakian.

Sahasadecha, a chief of giants with a white body, was the ruler of Pangtan City.
His younger brother, Phya Moonphlam, was a viceroy and friend of Thosakan.
Sahasadecha was a giant with 1,000 faces and 2,000 hands. His most important weapon
was a Tan club. He was killed by Hanuman.

Picture : Thosakan (left) and Sahasadecha (right), guarding Koeysadet (rear) Gate.
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Gate No. 6, Sanam Chai Gate

Sanam Chai Gate is the third gate on the western side facing Sanam Chai, a
small area of lawn, in front of Sala Sahathai Samakhom.

Murals along both sides of the entrance depict the giants Maiyarab, Virulhok,
Mangkornkan and Surasen. At the front of the gate, inside the temple, two 6-meter
tall plaster giants beautifully decorated with glazed colored ftiles, stand guard. They
are Maiyarab, on the left and Virulchambang, on the right.

Maiyarab, a chief of giants with a light purple body, was the ruler of the
subterranean world and a friend of Thosakan. He was the stepfather of Machanu,
a son of Hanuman and Suphanmacha. It was he who cast a spell on Phra Ram’s army
and then kidnapped and held him in an iron cage in the subterranean world. Hanuman
succeeded in rescuing Phra Ram and killed Maiyarab.

Virulchambang, a giant with a blackish-white body, was the son of PhyaToos,
the ruler of Charuek City and a nephew of Thosakan. He disguised himself as a very

tiny water insect and hid in an air bubble but was discovered and killed by | {anuman.

Gate No. 7, Viharn Yod Gate

Viharn Yod Gate is opposite Viharn Yod. It is decorated with pictures of the
giants Thosagirivan, Thosagirithorn, Nilpasan (a monkey) andVimol Wanorn (amonkey).

This is the only gate without statues of guardian giants.

Picture : The giants Maiyarab (left) and Viruichambang (right), guarding Sanam Chai Gate.
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Phra Asda Maha Chedi or the Eight Spires

Phra Asda Maha Chedi is the name of the eight phra prangs, or spires, that
stand on the eastern side of the temple. Six of the spires are outside the gallery walls,
and two are within. Each spire, which has an octagonal base, is constructed of bricks
and faced with plasterThe spires are decorated with stucco motifs and glazed colored
tiles. Figures of giants holding up the structure surround the spires on all four sides.
The effect is highly artistic. The spires were built to worship the Buddha and are
named, from north to south, as follows:

Phra Sammasamphuttha Mahachedi is the white prang dedicated to the Buddha.

Phra Satthampariyat Wara Mahachedii is the dark blue prang dedicated to the
Dhamma.

The pink prang (within the temple grounds), named Phra Ariyasong Sawok
Mahachedi, is dedicated to the Sangha, or order of monks.

The green prang (within the temple grounds) is named Phra Ariya Sawok
Phiksunee Sangha Mahachedi and is dedicated to the order of nuns.

Phra Patchek Phothisamphuttha Mahachedi, the gray prang, is dedicated to
the Buddha in his previous incarnations.

Phra Borom Chakrawadiraja Mahachedi, the grayish-blue prang, is dedicated
to powerful monarchs.

The red prang, named Phra Phothisat Krisda Mahachedi, is dedicated to the
Bodhisatta or Buddha before his enlightenment.

The yellow prang, named Phra Sri Ariyametaya Mahached, is dedicated to the
future Buddha.

The Phra Asda Mahachedis was constructed in the First Reign and underwent
major renovations in the Third Reign. The temple grounds were extended in the
Fourth Reign and it is for this reason that two of the prangs are now inside the

temple.

Picture : The Asda Maha Chedi viewed from the south to the north chedi.
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The hermit and Phra Phothithat Phimarn

On entering the Emerald Buddha Temple by the only gate permitted, the
Hermit Gate, on the western side of the temple, the first thing that the visitor
notices is a hermit (rishi) sitting on a rock base with his knee drawn up. In front of him
is a mortar for crushing medicines and behind him is the Phra Phothithat Phimarn.

The image of the hermit, called Cheewaka Komarapach, was cast in bronze in
the Third Reign. He was a hermit doctor experienced in preparing traditional herbal
medicines and the mortar was his symbol.

Phra Phothithat Phimarn was constructed by King Rama IV as a mondop
shaped at the top like a crown and decorated with porcelain cups and saucers arranged
into the shapes of flowers and leaves. The ceiling and columns within the mondop
are decorated in the western style and gilded. Inside, there is another ancient prang,
or spire, containing a relic of the Buddha obtained from Buddha Gaya in India. The
relic was brought from the North while King Rama IV was still a monk in the Third
Reign.

Phra Phothithat Phimarn is located at the western end of the Phra Ubosot
between Hor Ratchaphongsanusorn and Hor Ratchakoramanusorn Buddha Image
Halls.

Picture : Bronze hermit sitting on the base (left), Phra Phothithat Phimarn (right)
inside Phra Ubosot wall.
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Nag Buddha Image Hall

The hall is located on the northern side of the temple next to the gallery
walls and between Sanam Chai and Viharn Yod Gates. It houses the ashes of Somdej
Phra Pin Klao (King Rama IV) and Somdej Phra Boworn Ratchao Krom Phra
Ratchawang Boworn Sathan Mongkhol, the viceroy in the First, Second and Third
Reigns. In addition, it houses urns of the cremated ashes of high-ranking members
of the House of Chakri. Originally, the hall had contained a Buddha image cast from
an alloy of gold and copper called Nag, hence the hall’s name. Even though the image
has been moved to the Vihar Yod Buddha Image Hall, the hall is still to this day
called Nag Buddha Image Hall.

Nag Buddha Image Hall is a seven-room Thai-style building with the floor
raised to a height of five steps. The entrance is on the eastern side opposite the
Viharn Yod Buddha Image Hall. The floor is laid with marble while the columns near
the stairs on both sides are square. The tops of the columns are decorated with gold
leaf. The doors form an alcove in the shape of a mondop and are inlaid with gold leaf
and colored glass.

Nag Buddha Image Hall was constructed in the First Reign to house Phra Nag,
a Buddha image cast in an alloy of gold and copper, which was used in ceremonies
to honor the dead: this followed the practice of Ayutthaya, which also housed urns
containing the cremated ashes of royalty.

The building was largely renovated in the Third Reign and then used to house
Buddha images that were encased with gold, silver and an alloy of gold and copper.
The Phra Nag Buddha Image was transferred to Viharn Yod Buddha Image Hall. But
the hall which originally housed it retains its original name.

The hall was again renovated in the Fifth Reign to commemorate the capital's
centenary and the remaining images were transferred to the Viharn Yod Buddha

Image Hall. More renovations were carried in the Seventh and present reigns.

Picture : Nag Buddha image Hall, viewed from the western side.
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Monthientham Buddha Image Hall

Monthientham Buddha Image Hall is located to the east, opposite the first
of the six spires which lies outside the gallery walls. The hall lies beside the Prasat
Phra Thep Bidorn and houses two beautiful pearl-inlaid Tripitaka bookcases.
The bookcases contain several volumes of the Tripitaka. The building is also used for
preaching sermons on Buddhist holy days and Sundays, beginning at 8 am.and ||
a.m,, respectively.

Monthientham Buddha Image Hall is a rectangular building with a four-level
roof. The gable is decorated with a representation of Phra Brahma astride a phoenix
and above, Phra Indra mounted on Erawan, the three-headed elephant. Below the
gable are figures of five Thephanom or angels. The front of the building, between the
columns is decorated with wood carvings. The columns have triple indented corners
and the capitals are decorated with lotus flower design.The entrance door is on the
western side, opposite of the Viharn Yod Buddha Image Hall and is made of gilt-
stucco and shaped like a mondop. The door panels are inlaid with mother of pearl.
They were made by craftsmen in the reign of King Boromakot for Wat Borom
Phutharam in Ayutthaya. A verandah runs around the entire building. The windows
are set in alcoves, decorated with wood carvings at the top.The interior is decorated
with wood carvings of Hanuman, the symbol of the Front Palace. The inside of the
hall is decorated in a special Thai design, the decorations depict celestial beings and
groups of angels, male and female.

Monthientham Buddha Image Hall was constructed in the First Reign by Krom
Phra Ratchawang Boworn Mahasurasinghanat. The style is that of the early Bangkok-
late Ayutthaya period. The building was intended to house the Buddhist scriptures

(tripitaka) that were used to teach monks and novices.

Picture : Monthientham Buddha Image Hall, viewed from the front.
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Khanthararat Buddha Image Hall

Khanthararat Buddha Image Hall, situated on the same small terrace as Phra
Mondop Yod Prang, is a hall to house the Khanthararat Buddha Image. It is situated in
front of the Phra Ubosot near the gallery walls.

The hall houses the Phra Khanthararat Image, an important Buddha image
connected with the Plowing Ceremony. It was cast by order of King Rama | in 1783.
Rama IV consequently ordered the image to be gilded and a large diamond embedded
in the Buddha’s forehead as a Phra Unalome (hair on forehead between eyebrows).
This hall also houses an image of Phra Phirunsart.

Khanthararat Buddha Image Hall is a small, rectangular, Thai-style building on
a terrace, supported by a patt base (lotus design base). The entrance to the hall is
by the northern portico, opposite the Phra Ubosot. Five marble steps lead up to
the terrace and three more up to the Buddha Image Hall. The balustrade is in the
form of a naga, or serpent. The capitals of the columns on the terrace are sculpted
lions, in the Chinese style. The balusters are made of glazed ceramics and there are
two tall lantern posts.

Khanthararat Buddha Image Hall was built in the Fourth Reign to house the
Khanthararat Buddha Image. The PhraThan Manangkasila throne of Phra Ruang Chao,
King of Sukhothai, is situated in front of the hall. In the Fifth Reign renovations were
made to the tiles, the ceiling and the mural paintings and a pair of bronze oxen were
placed in front of the hall. Later these were placed in front of the Phra Ubosot
and the Phra Than Manangkasila Throne was transferred to the Wat Phra Sri

Ratanasasadaram Museum.

Picture : Khanthararat Buddha Image Hall (left), Phra Mondop Yod Prang (right).
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Phra Mondop Yod Prang

Phra Mondop Yod Prang stands on the same terrace as the Khanthararat
Buddha Image Hall and is located to the south of it. It houses an ancient Lanka-style
chedi.

Phra Mondop Yod Prang sits on an octagonal taksin two level base. Each level
is encircled by a one-meter wide border which is enclosed by white porcelain
balustrades. The stairs in front of the Khantararat Buddha Image Hall (north) leading
up to the mondop are lined with slabs of igneous rock.

The apex of the mondop is a prang decorated with rectangular blue tiles
alternating with green and yellow ones. The corner columns are decorated at the
base and top with lotus flowers designs made of green and white porcelain. The walls
on all four sides have 3 arches, the lower part of the arches have porcelain balustrades.

The apex of the mondop is a three-tier prang, decorated with pieces of green
cup porcelain, on a white and red background.The tip of the apex is made of metal.
Inside the mondop is a round chedi in the Lanka style.

Phra Mondop Yod Prang was constructed, concurrently with the Phra
Khantararat Buddha Image Hall,in the Fourth Reign, to house the ancient chedi that
was brought from the north while King Mongkut was still a monk in the Third Reign.

In the Seventh Reign the mondop underwent renovation to celebrate 150
years of the capital and received another major renovation to celebrate the capital’s

bicentenial in the present reign.

Picture : Phra Mondop Yod Prang seen from the front (middle) and the Khanthararat Buddha Image
Hali behind Phra Mondop (left).
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Phra Sawetkudakharn Viharn Yod Buddha Image Hall

Phra Sawetkudakharn Viharn Yod, or Viharn Yod, for short, houses Buddha
images including the Phra Thep Bidorn, Phra Nag and Phra Sila Images.

ViharnYod is a rectangular building supported by a prataksin base. There are
three entrances, situated on the northern, eastern and the western sides of the
building The three steps are faced with sandstone. The sides of the stairs are decorated
with bronze Tanthima birds, each holding a club.

The only entrance in use is the northern gate. The archway of this gate is in
the shape of a pointed crown and decorated with cup porcelain. The door panels
are inlaid with pearl, the work of craftsmen in the reign of King Boromakot of
Ayutthaya. Inside, the base consists of three tiers. The pilasters and columns are
decorated with colorful cup porcelain in the shape of lotus flowers. At the apex of
the wall arch are the initials of King Chulalongkorn under a small crown.

The central roof is in the shape of a crown decorated up to the gables with
cup porcelain on all four sides. The apex of the roof is decorated with colored glass.
The tip is made of hollow metal adorned with fretwork. The two lower roofs are
covered with yellow and green tiles and are adorned with chor fa, bai raka, nag
sadung and hang hong.

The Viharn Yod Buddha Image Hall was constructed in the First Reign and
was originally called Viharn Khao. King Rama Ill had the viharn dismantled and rebuilt
as Viharn Yod B uddha Image Hall to house the Phra Thep Bidorn image, the Nag
Buddha Image that was transferred from Nag Buddha Image Hall and a Sila Buddha
Image. King Chulalongkorn (Rama V) ordered the renovation of the roof and the
crowning apex as well as the doors and windows. A major renovation was carried
out in the Seventh Reign and included the regilding of the tip of the roof spire,
repairing ceramic designs, repainting door frames and repairing inlaid pearl door
panels. Further renovations have been carried out in the present reign but the original

structures built during the Third Reign are retained.

Picture : Viharn Yod, front view.
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The Bell Tower

The bell tower is located near the southern section of the gallery walls, and
houses a bell that is noted for its loud and beautiful tones. The bell is seldom used,
however, since the Emerald Buddha Temple is within the Grand Palace and has no
monks in residence. The tower was built to keep up a tradition, since temples usually
have a bell tower.

The bell tower is a square building in the shape of a mondop, atop a taksin
base with triple indented corners. There are four entrances, each in the shape of
a pointed arch decorated with cup porcelain. The roof is covered with glazed tiles,
red in the center and green at the borders. The top of the arch has a three-headed
naga design. The roof has chor fa and hang hong in the shape of a naga head. The door
frame is made of wood and painted green.The two wooden doors are painted green
and open inward. Air vents are covered with wire mesh and protected with a circular
carved wooden frame.

The actual bell tower sits atop the three-level base, the upper and lower
levels separated by a base with a lotus design. The triple indented corners are made
of gilded wood decorated with glass.The base of the columns is covered with traditional
Thai designs while the tops have a prop to help support the roof. The bell in suspended
from the center of the ceiling.

The bell tower was constructed in the First Reign so that the temple would
be complete in accordance with the rules for building temples. King Rama IV
(King Mongkut) had the old bell tower dismantled and a new one built. The new
tower was completed in the Fifth Reign. Further renovations were carried out in

the Seventh and present reigns, but the original designs have been preserved.

Picture : The Bell Tower, to the south of the Phra Ubosot (center) with Sala Rai (left) and
Phra Rabiang (right).
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Sala Rai

Sala Rai are open sided pavilions traditionally used as places where religious
text could be read to the people during festivals and holy days. There are twelve Sala
Rai placed around the Phra Ubosot, four pavilions each at the northern and southern
sides and two each at the front and rear. Although originally designed to provide
people who had come to hear the monks chanting with a resting place, they are now
mainly used by tourists as a resting place.

All twelve pavilions are similar in design and size, topped with a Thai-style roof
and covered with blue and orange tiles. The gable is decorated with a Thephanom
on a white glass background and surrounded by traditional Thai motifs on a blue
glass background. The roof is adorned with a chor fa, bai raka, hang hong and nag
sadung. Carved wooden props help support the roof on all sides. The ceilings of the
pavilions are decorated with fretwork on a bright red background. The square columns
all round the pavilion are covered with plaster. The floors are laid with marble at
both levels.

The Sala Rai were constructed in the First Reign. King Chulalongkorn (Rama
V) ordered new ones constructed to replace the originals and these were again
renovated in the same reign. King RamaVIl ordered all these pavilions to be dismantled
and new ones built to replace them. It is these pavilions that can be seen today.
These same pavilions were renovated in the original style to mark the capital’s

bicentennial in the present reign.

Picture : The Sala Rai, to the north of the Phra Ubosot.
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Phaithee Terrace

A phaithee is a terrace, or base, that supports several buildings. In the
Emerald Buddha Temple, there are two phaithee terraces: the large terrace adjacent
to the Phra Ubosot, which supports the Phra Sri Ratana Chedi, the Phra Mondop
and the Prasat Phra Thep Bidorn; and the small phaithee at the front of the Ubosot
which supports the Phra Khanthararat Buddha Image Hall and the Phra Mondop Yod
Prang.

The large phaithee terrace is rectangular in shape.The terrace is raised three
steps and is surrounded by a balustrade and decorated with porcelain. There are six
entrances. There is a mondop-shaped door arch on the western side of the phaithee
terrace. The tip of the arch is decorated with cup porcelain, and the roof is covered
by green tiles with yellow tiles at the borders.

Originally, the phaithee terrace was a 3 level prataksin terrace of the Phra
Mondop. King Mongkut (Rama IV) ordered two levels of this terrace to be filled up
and expanded to create the phaithee terrace in preparation for the construction
of the Phra Phuthaprang Prasat and Phra Sri Ratana Chedi. At the same time the
balustrades and six door arches were also constructed.

In the Fifth Reign the stone floor of the phaithee terrace was replaced and
several objects were added, including cast animal figures, the chadra (many-tier umbrella)
and brass lamp posts and three small bussabokes housing the insignias of the Kings
of Ratanakosin.

In the Sixth Reign, the Phra Phuthaprang Prasat was repaired and transformed
into the Prasat Phra Thep Bidorn. The door arches at the top of the mondop were
removed, leaving only two arches, on the southern and western sides. The phanom
mak, or betel trays, were also added atop the walls.

Princess Maha Chakri Sirindhorn ordered the construction of another small
bussaboke to house the insignias of King Rama VI to the present reign.

Picture : On the phaithee terrace, from left to right, Prasat Phra Thep Bidorn, Phra Mondop Yod

Prang and Phra Sri Ratana Chedi.
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Phra Sri Ratana Chedi and Two Songkhrueang Chedis

The Phra Sri Ratana Chedi is situated on the phaithee terrace, on the
western side of the Phra Mondop, and houses Buddha's relic from Lanka.

The Phra Sri Ratana Chedi is a circular chedi in the Lankan style. The chedi
is a brick and mortar structure entirely faced with gold tiles which were specially
made in ltaly.The bell-shaped structure is mounted on a khiang base and three level
malai bases. Each malai base is separated by bua kwam and bua ngai bases (lotus
design bases). Above the bell-shaped structure is a square structure with columns
supporting the 20 concentric circular structures arranged in decreasing size above it.

There are four entrance arches and four porticos. The porticos have gables and
are decorated with chor fa, bai raka, hang hong and nag sadung. At the top of the door
arches, there is a small chedi that is an exact replica of the Phra Sri Ratana Chedi.

The interior of the chedi is a round hall at the center of which there is a white
chadra (many-tiered umbrella) suspended over the small chedi that contains relics
of the Buddha. The chedi, an exact replica of the main chedi, is covered in black
lacquer.

The two Songkhrueang chedis are situated behind the main chedi.The chedis
are square with triple indented corners and are decorated with gold leaf and glass.
Part of the apex consists of lotus flower design. It is surmised that the chedis are
ancient and were used to adorn the Phra Mondop when the temple was constructed
in the First Reign and removed to their present location in the Fourth Reign.

King Rama IV had the Phra Sri Ratana Chedi constructed in 1855 to house
Buddhars relic which had been received from Lanka. He named it the Phra Sri Ratana
Chedi. King RamaV completed the construction of the chedi and faced it with gold
tiles. In the Seventh Reign, renovation of the exterior of the chedi was carried out.

In the present reign, broken gold tiles on the external surface were repaired.

Picture : The Phra Sri Ratana Chedi. In the foreground is the phanom mak.
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Prasat Phra Thep Bidorn or Phra Phuthaprang Prasat

Phra Phuthaprang Prasat , later also called the Prasat Phra Thep Bidorn, is
the most important building on this phaithee terrace. The prasat is situated at the
front of the terrace. It houses statues of the Chakri kings, from King Rama | to King
RamaVIll. It is open to the public only on 6" April, Chakri Day; 5" May, Chadramongkhol
Day, 13" 14" 15" April, Songkran Festival; 5" December, King's Birthday; and 73"
October; Chulalongkorn Day. There are two golden chedis in front of the Prasat
Phra Thep Bidorn and to the left and right hand sides of it.

Prasat Phra Thep Bidorn is a rectangular building in the Thai style. There are
four entrances from the phaithee terrace.The floor is laid with marble. The balustrades
are in the form of a five-headed naga wearing a crown covered with gold leaf and
decorated with glass. The stairs on the eastern side are guarded by two angels. The
brick walls of the prasat are covered with plaster and decorated with glazed ceramices
inThai design called phum khao bin.The door and window arches are topped with a
crown design, covered with gold leaf and decorated with colored glass.

The roof itself is split into four levels, although the front elevation has five
levels. At the center of the roof there is a large prang covered completely with light
green glazed tiles. The apex of the prang is topped by a metal crown covered with
gold leaf; King Chulalongkorn’s insignia.

(continued on next page)

Picture : The Prasat Phra Thep Bidorn, viewed from the front is flanked by two gold chedis at the
corners of the phaithee terrace.
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Prasat Phra Thep Bidorn or Phra Phuthaprang Prasat (continued)

The gables are adorned with a Thai crown flanked by two chadras (multi-tier
umbrellas), against a blue glass background; King Rama IV's insignia.The gable on
the north side depicts Unalome, King Rama I's insignia; the south side depicts the
garuda holding naga, King Rama II's insignia; and the west depicts a phra vimarn,
King Rama lII's insignia.

King Mongkut began construction of the Phra Phuthaprang Prasat in 1855,
based on the Prasat Thong in Ayutthaya which he named the Phra Phuthaprang
Prasat. The building was originally intended to house the Emerald Buddha Image
but the King died before the building was completed.

King Chulalongkorn continued with the construction of the Phra Phuthaprang
Prasat and it was completed in 1882 but because the building turned out to be too
small it was not used to house the Emerald Buddha Image. In 1903 the building
was damaged by fire and repairs had to be undertaken. These were completed in
the Sixth Reign. The building now houses the statues of the first five Chakri kings
and its name has been changed to Prasat Phra Thep Bidorn.

King Rama VIl ordered a statue of Rama VI to be cast and installed in Phra
Phuthaprang Prasat in 1927. King Rama VIIl ordered a statue of King Rama VIl to
be cast, but died before the work was completed. The present King continued
the work and also ordered a statue of King Rama VIIl to be cast. Both were installed
in Phra Phuthaprang Prasat on : April 1959.

Picture : The windows and the door on the northern side of Prasat Phra Thep Bidorn building.
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Two Golden Phra Chedis

The two golden Phra Chedis situated on the phaithee terrace in front of
the Prasat Phra Thep Bidorn were constructed by King Rama | in honor of his father
(southern chedi) and mother (northern chedi).

The two chedis are exactly the same design and size, having a square base
with triple indented corners.The structures are entirely covered with copper sheets,
painted with lacquer and covered with gold leaf.

The golden Phra Chedis are placed on an octagonal base lined with marble
adorned with a cross design. Above the base are 20 plaster giants and monkeys
decorated with colored glass who appear to be lifting the chedi. A monkey figure
is placed at the center of each side of the base. Above that is a three-level singha
base (lion design base). Next there is a lotus flower designed base on which the
chedis stand. The apex of the chedi consists of a group of nine lotus flower design
levels, which are topped with a hollow spire covered with gold leaf.

The two chedis were constructed in the First Reign at the edge of the pool to
the east of the original Monthientham Buddha Image Hall. King Mongkut (King Rama
IV) ordered the construction of the Phra Phuthaprang Prasat at that site. The chedis
were therefore moved to the front, south and north of the Phra Phuthaprang Prasat.
King Rama V had the chedis covered with copper sheets and painted with lacquer
and covered with gold leaf. He also had the demons and monkeys added. King Rama
VI ordered the chedis removed to their present location.

Picture : The northern golden Phra Chedli situated at the front of the phaithee terrace.
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Phra Mondop

The Phra Mondop stands on the phaithee terrace which is centrally located
between the Prasat Phra Thep Bidorn and the Phra Sri Ratana Chedi. The entrance
on the southern side opposite the Phra Ubosot has 20 steps and is very beautiful.
The Phra Mondop houses the golden edition of the tripitaka which is kept in a pear
inlaid cabinet shaped like a mondop and placed at the center of the Phra Mondop.
Stone Buddha Images, which King Rama IV obtained from Java in Indonesia, stand
at each corner of the mondop.

The Phra Mondop is a square structure. Each level is enclosed by walls, and
decorated with copper lamps. Lacquered copper chadras (many-tier umbrellas) adorn
the corner columns. There are eight steps leading up to the taksin platform. The
balustrades are of the crowned naga design. The stairs leading up to the top platform
are adorned with human figures each wearing a naga design crown.

The walls of the Phra Mondop are adorned with traditional Thai designs
featuring the Thep Phanom covered with gold leaf and decorated with green glass.
The lower parts of the walls feature a patt base (lotus design base) with Thep
Phanom lined up in a row above and with garudas and demons below. Square
columns with triple indented corners support the mondop. The column bases are
decorated with green and white glass. The columns are adorned with white, green
and red glass. Gold leaf-covered bells with bodhi leaf design clappers are hung all
around the eaves.

The top of the Phra Mondop’s door arch is mondop shaped, covered with
gold leaf and adorned with glass. The exterior panels of the door are also adorned
with Thai designs, with a carved lion relief motif in the middle.

(continued on next page)

Picture : The rear Phra Mondop Yod Prang situated on the Phaithee terrace. At the corner is

a small Phra Mondop which houses the royal emblem of the Chakri kings.
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Phra Mondop (continued)

The roof is a seven-level mondop with triple indented corners and has
a three-headed naga decorated with green glass. The roof tiles are green with
a blend of gold tile up to the neck of the hema (phoenix). The hema itself is
adorned with white and red glass. The plee and upper part of the mondop is also
adorned with white, yellow and red glass. The apex consists of a chadra (a five-tier
umbrella).

The tripitaka, or Buddhist scriptures with 84,000 verses, are housed in the
tripitaka bookcase inside Phra Mondop. Cabinets adorned with Thai designs and
containing other versions of the tripitaka are placed at the four corners of the room.

The interior ceiling has two levels with a five-tier star at the lower level from
which a hexagonal glass lamp is suspended at the center. The walls are decorated
with Thai designs and covered with gold leaf as are the interior door panels.

King Rama | ordered the Phra Mondop constructed on a three-level base in
1788, at the site of the original Monthien Tham Buddha Image Hall that was
destroyed by fire. The Phra Mondop was designed specially to house the tripitaka,
which he had ordered to be revised.

King Rama IV ordered the base to be built up and expanded to be ready
for the construction of the Phra Sri Ratana Chedi and Phra Phuthaprang Prasat. He
also added the silver mats. King Chulalongkorn carried out renovations and had
the roof repainted with lacquer and decorated with yellow glass. In the Seventh

and present reigns, further renovations were carried out.

Picture : Stone Buddha images on a base at the corner of the Phra Mondop.
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Ratchaphongsanusorn and Ratchakoramanusorn
Buddha Image Halls

The Ratchaphongsanusorn and Ratchakoramanusorn Buddha Image Halls
are situated on either side of the Phra Phothithat Phimarn, next to the Phra Ubosot
walls behind the Phra Ubosot building.

Both halls are similar in design and size and hold a total of 42 Buddha images.
The images are cast of copper and covered with gold, and are placed on khiang
copper bases. Thirty-four of the images are dedicated to and inscribed with the
names of the kings of Ayutthaya and Thonburi, and eight are dedicated to and
inscribed with the name of the Ratanakosin kings.

King Rama Il ordered the casting of the 34 copper images dedicated to the
Ayutthaya and Thonburi kings. King Rama IV ordered the casting of the bases and
the gilding of all the images. Thirty-four of the images were inscribed with the names
of the Ayutthaya and Thonburi kings, and three with the names of the Ratanakosin
kings.

Subsequently King Chulalongkorn ordered the casting of an image similar to
the Buddha Image of King Rama IV, King Rama VI and King Rama VIl ordered the
casting of Buddha images for their predecessors and in the present reign, two images
were cast, one in the pose of forgiving and blessing, dedicated to King Rama VIl and
the other image in the pose of meditation, dedicated to King Rama VIIl.

The Buddha images dedicated to King Rama | to V are protected with a
chadra (three-tier umbrella), while those dedicated to King Rama VI to VIl have five-
tier umbrellas. Both the Buddha image halls, constructed in the Fourth Reign, are
rather small. The interior walls of the halls are adorned with murals; those of the
Ratchaphongsanusorn Buddha Image Hall depicting the history of Ratanakosin and
those of Ratchakoramanusorn Buddha Image Hall depicting the history of Ayutthaya.

Picture : Ratchakoramanusorn Buddha Image Hall, at the northern wall, of Phra Ubosot.
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Phra Ubosot

The Phra Ubosot, with its front facing east and rear facing west, is opposite
the Hermit Gate and south of the temple. This is the largest and main building of
the temple of the Fmerald Buddha. The building is open to the public every day
between 8 am.and 4 p.m.

The Phra Ubosot is surrounded by walls decorated with coloured tiles on
all four sides. Protruding from the walls around the Phra Ubosot, there are eight
sema arch houses. Fach sema house has a five spire alcove and houses one
pair of metal sema. Each spire is chedi-shaped with triple indented corners,
decorated with glass and set on a gilded lotus designed base.

In front of the Phra Ubosot, is a stone Guan Im, a Bhodhisatta of the Mahayana
sect. Lotus flower design bronze plates adorn the Phra Ubosot's stone columns and
it is flanked by Wayuphak birds. A pair of bronze oxen stand at the rear: These oxen
were originally placed in front of the Plowing Ceremony pavilions.When the pavilions
were dismantled, in the Fifth Reign, the oxen were moved to this location.

The Phra Ubosot is a Thai-style single-story brick building which is completely
surrounded by a wall. The floor has two levels, the first level is the taksin platform
which is laid with gray marble, the second level is the Phra ubosot floor with a lotus
flower designed base.

The three-tier roof has an extension in the front and rear. The roof is
constructed of wood and covered with glazed tiles. The roof is adorned with chor fa,
bai raka, hang hong and nag sadung and decorated with gold mirrors. The overhang
is also wood, painted bright red and decorated with carvings. Small bells with bodhi
leaf clappers are hung all around. The gables of wood are carved with depiction of
Phra Narai holding a garuda and covered with gold leaf.

(continued on next page)

Picture : Phra Ubosot, from the front, showing the stone column behind the Guan Im statue.
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Phra Ubosot (continued)

The exterior walls of the Phra Ubosot are covered with tiles, decorated
with Thai designs and adorned with white, red, blue and yellow glass. The lower part
of the wall, below the windows, has a patt base (lotus design base).The lowest part
of the base is decorated with glazed colored tiles with Chinese designs, while
above there are three levels of patterns reaching up to the singha base (lion design
base) and decorated with alternating white and blue glass.

Garudas holding nagas are placed atop the singha base which is decorated
with gilt-stucco and blue glass. In all there are a total of |12 metal garudas holding
nagas around the Phra Ubosot.

Each door arch is in the shape of a mondop, covered with gold and
decorated with glass. The ceilings of the arches are painted bright red and decorated
with large, three layer, flower patterns, gilded and covered with glass at the center.
Smaller flowers surround the large ones. The walls between the doors are covered
with stucco motif with a Thai design. The exterior door panels are inlaid with pearl
while the interior panels are decorated with Thai designs.

The window arches are also in the shape of a mondop, gilded and adorned
with glass. The ceilings are painted bright red and decorated with a large three
layer flower pattern, gilded and covered with glass at the center. Smaller flowers
surround the large ones. At the lower part of the archway is a singha base gilded
and decorated with blue glass. The exterior walls are decorated with plaster designs
depicting angels. The exteriors of the window panels are inlaid with pearl while
the interior panels are decorated with Thai designs.

(continued on next page)

Picture : The cast garudas holding nagas provide support around the Phra Ubosot base.
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Phra Ubosot (continued)

King Rama | ordered the construction of the Phra Ubosot in 1783 to house
the Emerald Buddha Image, which he had brought from Vientiane in 1779.
The structure was completed in 1785. Summer and rainy season robes were also
created for the image.

King Rama Ill ordered a major renovation in 1831 and many changes were
made both to the interior and exterior. These changes included covering the roof
with colored tiles, installing the |12 garudas holding nagas, decorating the columns
around the Phra Ubosot with colored glass, installing 62 candlesticks and erecting
an additional eight sao harn columns in front of the Phra Ubosot. The interior
modifications included raising the bussaboke of the Emerald Buddha Image, painting
the murals depicting the Buddhas incarnations, installing mirrors and creating the
winter robe for the image. Further alterations and modifications were made by
subsequent kings.

King Rama IV made alterations to the door and window panels, King RamaV
had minor repairs made, laid a brass sheet over the Phra Ubosot floor and installed
several religious ornaments made of Italian marble. King Rama VI had the bussaboke
repaired and made other minor alterations and King Rama VIl ordered general
renovations to the structure.

In the present reign major renovations were carried out without disturbing

the ancient characteristics.

Picture : The six bronze Cambodian-style lions, at the rear entrance to the Phra Ubosot.
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Borom Phimarn Throne Hall

Borom Phimarn Throne Hall is situated to the south of the Grand Palace
next to the Phra Maha Monthien Buildings. On exiting the temple of the Emerald
Buddha gates, Borom Phimarn Throne Hall is on the lefthand side. Its iron gates
are shut and guarded by sentries, and visitors are not permitted to enter.

Dusitsasada Gate is between Borom Phimarn Throne Hall and the Phra Maha
Monthien Buildings. It is decorated with a prang with a four-faced Brahma on top
of a beautiful gate archway. Formerly, this was the passageway used by the queen
and ladies of the court to enter the temple of the Emerald Buddha and it was not
accessible to the public.

Nowadays, the hall is used as a guest house for state visitors and royal guests
from many countries. The hall compound consists of the palace building, Khwan
garden, Siwalai garden and two Thai-style guest houses within the Siwalai garden for
officials accompanying the state guests.

Borom Phimarn Throne Hall is a two-story building in the neoclassic style
of the Renaissance period. The walls are interspersed with pilasters and decorated
with plaster designs. Circular door and window arches are incorporated in the design
of the buildings front elevation. The triangular gables are also decorated with stucco
motifs and the distinctive Mansard roof is covered with slate tiles. At the front of
the hall, above the windows, there is a stucco motif of the Crown Prince’s insignia.

(continued on next page)

Picture : Borom Phimarn Throne Hall, viewed from the front. (Permission for the photograph to be
taken was granted for educational purposes by the Royal Secretariat in january 2001)
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Borom Phimarn Throne Hall (continued)

Borom Phimarn Throne Hall, located north of the Siwalai garden, was the
site of a former armory. King Chulalongkorn ordered the armory removed and had
constructed in its place a two-story western-style building intended to be the
residence of the Crown Prince Vajirunhis and which he named Phanumart
Chamroon Throne Hall. The prince died before it could be completed and the hall,
constructed between 1897 and 1903, was then made the residence of the Crown
Prince Vajiravudh. In the Sixth Reign, the name was changed to Borom Phimarn
Throne Hall.

Today the hall has been adapted to serve as a guest house for visiting
heads of state. The east wing was extended and the interior of the building was
renovated. Two Thai-style houses to accomodate accompanying officials were built
in the Siwalai garden.

Many kings have resided at the hall,including RamaVI who, after his coronation,
came to stay on several occasions. King Rama VIl stayed at the hall before his
coronation. King Rama VI, on his return to the country in 1946, stayed at Borom
Phimarn Throne Hall with his brother and the Princess Mother. The king also died
while staying at the hall.

Even though the building is of western design, much of the interior is
decorated in Thai style. The dome of the hall is decorated with pictures of Phra Indra,
Phra Warun, Phra Akanee and Phra Yom. Below these angels and gods are

inscriptions written in a Thai script devised by King Rama V.

Picture : Borom Phimarn Throne Hall, from the rear of the building. (Permission for the photograph
to be taken was granted for educational purposes by the Royal Secretariat in january 2001)
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The Phra Maha Monthien Buildings

The Phra Maha Monthien Buildings are situated to the east of the central
zone of the palace. On exiting the temple of the Emerald Buddha, Borom Phimarn
Throne Hall is on the lefthand side while the Phra Maha Monthien Buildings are on
the right. The Buildings, enclosed by a wall, are important because they were used
as sleeping quarters for the kings. All the coronations from King Rama Il to the
present king took place in these buildings and the present king has used the hall for
many important functions. Only Amarinthara Winichai Mahaisunya Phimarn
Throne Hall is open to the public.

The Phra Maha Monthien Group of Buildings consists of three buildings, namely:

Amarinthara Winichai Mahaisunya Phimarn Throne Hall, which is the front

hall, and is used as an audience hall for palace officials;

Phaisarn Taksin Throne Hall, which is the central hall and which was formerly

used as the private royal residence. It now houses the Siam Thevathiraj

Buddha Image and the important Atthit and Phatharabit Thrones; and

Chakraphat Phimarn Throne Hall which is the innermost palace and was used

as the king’s sleeping quarters after their coronations.

King Rama | ordered the construction of the Phra Maha Monthien Buildings
in 1785.The original buildings were named the Chakraphat Phimarn Throne Hall.
King Rama Il added the Sanam Chan Pavilion and the Narai Chinese pavillion.
King Rama Ill changed the name to Phra Maha Monthien Buildings and carried out
major renovations. King Mongkut (Rama V) added the door and window arches,
the hall and the Brahma-faced gateway. He also added the archway entrances on
the northern and western sides and named them the Thevaphibal and Thevetraksa
gates, respectively. King Rama V| ordered the construction of the portico extensions
on both the eastern and western sides of the Amarinthara Winichai Mahaisunya
Phimarn Building. King Rama VIl and VIII, as well as the present monarch retained the

buildings in their existing form.

Picture : Phra Maha Monthien Buildings, viewed from along the western wall. The entrance arch
is called the Thevetraksa Gate. (see the map on page 103)
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Amarinthara Winichai Mahaisunya Phimarn Throne Hall

Thevaphibal Gate is the main entrance to the Amarinthara Winichai
Mahaisunya Phimarn Throne Hall. The central gate is used by the king, while the other
two gates are for the public. Chinese-style stone statues and lions are placed in
front of the gates. The gateway is topped by a Thai-style crown. The main gateway
is at the center and is decorated with green cup porcelain, The two side gates
are roofed with blue tiles and there is a small crown at the center of each. The gables
are lined with marble adorned with Thai designs and below them are two
phoenixes facing one another. At the center is a picture of the sun. The ceiling
of the gate has a dragon design. This gateway was constructed in the Fourth Reign.

The Amarinthara Winichai Mahaisunya Phimarn Throne Hall is an audience
chamber with a raised floor: The main entrance door is flanked by two porticoes.
The central door is used by royalty to enter the building and the doors in the extensions
are for public use. Within the audience hall there are six columns which are
gilded and adorned with Thai designs. The hall houses the throne called Phuttan
Kanchanasinghat, covered by a chadra (multi-tier umbrella). Next to it is the
Bussabokemala Mahachakaphat Phimarn Throne.

The roof of the Amarinthara Winichai Mahaisunya Phimarn Throne Hall is
covered with green tiles with orange tile borders and is decorated with chor fa, bai
raka and hang hong and adorned with gold-colored glass.

The gable is adorned with a mural depicting Phra Indra. The gable over the

audience hall is of a design much favored in the Fourth Reign.

Picture : Thevaphibal Gate, is the front entrance to the Amarinthara Winichai Mahaisunya
Phimarn.
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Sastrakhom or Phra Parit Buddha Image Hall

Sastrakhom or Phra Parit Buddha Image Hall is located within the walls
of the Phra Maha Monthien Buildings and lies northeast of Amarinthara Winichai
Mahaisunya Phimarn Throne Hall. It is the same size as Dusida Phirom Throne Hall
and is thought to have been built concurrently. It was an ancient custom to have
such a hall constructed within the palace walls for the use of Mon monks who
used the hall to prepare holy water for religious ceremonies and for sprinkling
around the palace compound every afternoon. This ceremony was performed for
many consecutive reigns but was discontinued in the Seventh Reign. Nowadays,
it is performed on Buddhist holy days by Mon monks from Wat Chanasongkhram.
It is not open to the public.

The Sastrakhom Buddha Image Hall is a Thai-style building with its floor
raised |.5 meters.The roof is covered with tiles and decorated with chor fa, bai raka
and hang hong. The gables, made of carved wood, depict an angel standing on a
platform and are covered with gold leaf. In the right hand of the angel is a trident,
while the left hand holds a two-bladed weapon.

Inside, the hall is divided into two rooms. The northern room is a prayer
room for monks when they prepare the holy water. There is a Buddha image and
closets built into the walls for storing the religious articles and the holy water used
in religious ceremonies. The southern room is for storing religious artifacts.

The hall was built in the First Reign. King Rama Il named the hall “Phra
Parit Buddha Image Hall.” King Mongkut ordered the hall dismantled and a new one
built to replace it and renamed it the “Sastrakhom Buddha Image Hall.” In the past
the building was also used for making charms and amulets for soldiers going to war.
The window and door panels are covered with pictures of ancient weapons.The hall

has been repaired and is now maintained in its original form.

Picture : Sastrakhom Buddha Image Hall, front view.
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Ratcharuedee Pavilion

Ratcharuedee Pavilion, an audience chamber in the style of a three-sided
portico pavilion, is situated near to and east of the Amarinthara Winichai Mahaisunya
Phimarn Throne Hall. King Rama VI ordered its construction for use in ceremonies
connected with birthday celebrations and for presenting offerings to deities.

The one-tier roof is decorated with chor fa, bai raka, hang hong and gilded nag
sadung and is covered with white tiles. The carved gables depict Phra Narai riding
a garuda and Thai designs on a white glass background.

A concrete column supports the roof, which is covered with gold leaf and
decorated with Thai designs. The ends of the column are of a lotus flower design,
covered with gold leaf and decorated with glass. The ceilings are also gilded and
adorned with fretwork.

King Mongkut had originally ordered the construction of a western-style two-
story building to be used for official business and for storing and displaying gifts sent
by other nations. King Chulalongkorn ordered the building dismantled when it became
dilapidated and had it replaced with a Chinese-style pavilion.When this also became
dilapidated King Rama VI ordered it dismantled and a new pavilion erected in its
place. It was originally named “Chanthiphayopas Throne Hall” but on 2 April 1923 it
was renamed as “Ratcharuedee Throne Hall.”

Picture : Ratcharuedee Pavilion, front view.
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Sulalai Phimarn Buddha Image Hall

The Sulalai Phimarn Buddha Image Hall is situated to the east of the Phaisarn
TaksinThrone Hall and is a twin of the Phra That Monthien Buddha Image Hall situated
to the west. This Buddha Image Hall is within the inner palace, adjacent to the
Dusitsasada Gate. It has a prang-shaped roof with a four-faced Brahma. The public
can view its front elevation only from outside.

Sulalai Phimarn Buddha Image Hall is a small Thai-style building that is connected
to the Phaisarn Taksin Throne Hall by a portico. The roof is covered with green tiles
with yellow tile borders. It is adorned with a chor fa, bai raka, hang hong and nag
sadung,and decorated with gold-colored glass.The gables which show signs of Chinese
influence are made of carved wood, adorned with Thai designs and covered with
gold leaf. Below the gable are two air vents. The door and window arches are of
western style and are decorated with stucco motifs. The exterior window panels are
decorated with Thai designs in gold paint and depict Mount Krailart.

Inside the hall, golden chedi house the Buddha relic.The ceilings are made
of wood and decorated with designs in gold and black paint on a red background.
There are eight lamps and four glass chandeliers.

King Rama | constructed this hall in keeping with the royal tradition of
housing Buddha images near the palace. He also constructed the PhraThat Monthien
Buddha Image Hall to house the ashes of royal ancestors originally named “Hor
Phra Chao” and to house the Buddha images Phra Phutha Chulachak and Phra Phutha
Chakraphat. King Rama Il brought an image called Phra Phutha Busayaratana
Chakraphat Phimon Maneemai from Champhasak in Laos and installed it here
in 1812. He carried out extensive renovations and renamed the building as the
“Sulalai Phimarn Buddha Image Hall.” King Rama Il and King rama IV each had two

images cast and installed here.

Picture : On the left is the Dusitsasada Gate, on the right is Sulalai Phimarn Gate.
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Dusidaphirom Throne Hall

The Dusidaphirom Throne Hall is adjacent to the Phra Maha Monthien
Building’s wall, northwest of the Amarinthara Winichai Mahaisunya Phimarn Throne
Hall. It is an evening pavilion. The northern side protrudes beyond the walls and has
a platform for mounting elephants. On the outside, the western wall has a platform
for mounting royal vehicles.

It is a single-story Thai-style building with a raised floor: The stairway leading
into the structure is inside the wall.The roof is covered with tiles and decorated with
chor fa, bai raka and hang hong. The roof overhang is painted bright red and adorned
with fretwork. The gables, of carved wood, covered with gold leaf, depict an angel
carrying a sword. The exterior walls are decorated with gold designs on a green
background.The lower part of the windows are carved and decorated with gold leaf
on a blue glass back ground.This is the only building in the palace with exterior wall
paintings. The stair case is flanked by a pair of stone lions. The entrances to the
basement of the building are framed by wood panels with painted green, black and
gold designs.

Inside there is a hall with eight octagonal wood columns. The columns have
lotus flower design capitals and are covered with Thai designs. The upper part of the
walls are covered with pictures depicting groups of angels, giants and people.
The lower part of the walls are covered with pictures of trees, birds and mountains.

King Rama | ordered the Dusitdaphirom Throne Hall constructed as an open
structure. King Rama Il added brick plastered walls and had the walls decorated
inside and out. King Mongkut alternated the elephant mounting platform with the
vehicle mounting platform. King Chulalongkorn added the four gates, which can

be seen to this day.

Picture : The Dusidaphirom Throne Hall, with an elephant-mounting platform in the front
and next to it a platform for mounting royal vehicles (left).
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Sanam Chan Pavilion

The Sanam Chan Pavilion is situated to the west of Amarinthara Winichai
Mahaisunya Phimarn Throne Hall, in front of the Phra That Monthien Buddha Image
Hall. King Rama Il had the palace constructed for his leisure and for occasionally
receiving officials in audience.

It is a small wooden pavilion with a tiled roof, adorned with chor fa, bai raka
and hang hong, painted with lacquer, gilded and decorated with glass. The gables
are decorated with Thai flower designs covered with gold leaf on a white glass
background. The four columns and roof overhangs are made of square-cut wood,
carved and decorated. The platform inside the building is lacquered, gilded and
decorated with glass. The ceilings are made of planks which are decorated with
flower patterns believed to be King Rama II's own work.

King Rama Il constructed the Sanam Chan Pavilion and subsequent monarchs
have used it to house Khrueang Thong Yai for lighting the candles and joss sticks
used when worshipping the relics of King Rama | at Phra That Monthian Buddha
Image Hall located to the south of Sanam Chan Pavilion.

The present monarch had the foundation strengthened and covered with
marble, in 1963.

Picture : Sanam Chan Pavilion, front view. Phra That Monthien Buddha Image Hall is at the back right.
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The Chakri Maha Prasat Halls

The Chakri Maha Prasat Halls consist of a group of 9 major and minor halls.
The Chakri Maha Prasat Throne Hall is situated in front of the Moon Satharn Borom
Ard and the Sommuti Thevaraj Ubbat Throne Halls. The halls were built in the Fifth
Reign.

The Moon Satharn Borom Ard Throne Hall serves as a dining hall.

The Sommuti Thevaraj Ubbat Throne Hall has a beautiful fountain.
King Chulalongkorn was born at this hall, and it was here, amid a gathering of his
advisors, that he declared his intention to abolish slavery on 12" July 874,

The Damrong Sawad Ananwong Throne Hall is a beautiful coffee room.

The Niphatphong Thawornwichit Throne Hall was used as the royal wardrobe.

King Rama V lived at the Borom Ratchasathit Mahoran Throne Hall when he
moved here from the Moon Satharn Borom Ard Throne Hall. The ground floor is
divided into the yellow, blue and green rooms.

The Chakri Maha Prasat Throne Hall is situated in front of the other halls and
was the last to be constructed.

When King Chulalongkorn ascended the throne in 1868, he built the halls
on the site of the building where he had been born and lived as a child. Construction
was begun in 1868 and completed in 1873. On 7" May 876 construction of the
Chakri Maha Prasat Throne Hall was begun, with John Clunich of Singapore, hired
as the architect and Henry Clunich Ross hired as his helper. Construction was
completed in 1882. Between 1882 and 1887 the king had four more palaces
constructed.

King Chulalongkorn resided at these palaces until near the end of his reign.
In 1900 he moved to the new Dusit Palace. He died at the Amphorn Satharn Throne
Hall in Dusit Palace on 23 October 1910.This day is now celebrated annually as
Chulalongkorn Day. (Piya Maharatch Day)

Picture : A mosaic of King Chulalongkorn below the central main balcony.
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Chakri Maha Prasat Throne Hall

Chakri Maha Prasat Throne Hall is one of a group of buildings in the Chakri
Maha Prasat Throne Halls. It is situated on the northern side of the palace, between
The Sanam Ratchakit and Phrom Sopha gates. The building is a blend of western
and Thai styles. The structure is western while the Thai-style roof has three tiers and
three porticoes above which there is a seven-tier prasat.

The building has a T-shape plan with the Chakri Maha Prasat at the front,
or head and the central and rear halls forming the body. The front of the building
is a three-story structure consisting of the three prasats. The three front halls of
the building are connected by a long hallway.

The upper floor of the central hall is used for keeping royal ashes, of Kings
Rama IV to VIIl and their Queens, the middle floor is a large access gallery and the
ground floor is used by the royal bodyguards.

The upper floor on the eastern hall of the Chakri Maha Prasat is used as the
Buddha Image room, the middle floor is used for receiving guests and the ground
floor is used by the royal bodyguards.

The upper floor of the western hall of the Chakri Maha Prasat is used for
storing ashes of the queens and certain members of royalty, the middle floor is used
for receiving guests and the ground floor is now used as a library and a storeroom.

The upper floor of the western portico is a walkway and serves as the roof
of the middle floor. The middle floor is a hall and the ground floor which is open

to the public is a museum displaying ancient weapons.

Picture : Chakri Maha Prasat Throne Hall with the three prasats visible, front view. Eastern hail
(left), western hall (right).
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Chakri Maha Prasat Throne Hall

Chakri Maha Prasat Throne Hall is one of a group of buildings in the Chakri
Maha Prasat Throne Halls. It is situated on the northern side of the palace, between
The Sanam Ratchakit and Phrom Sopha gates. The building is a blend of western
and Thai styles. The structure is western while the Thai-style roof has three tiers and
three porticoes above which there is a seven-tier prasat.

The building has a T-shape plan with the Chakri Maha Prasat at the front,
or head and the central and rear halls forming the body. The front of the building
is a three-story structure consisting of the three prasats. The three front halls of
the building are connected by a long hallway.

The upper floor of the central hall is used for keeping royal ashes, of Kings
Rama IV to VIl and their Queens, the middle floor is a large access gallery and the
ground floor is used by the royal bodyguards.

The upper floor on the eastern hall of the Chakri Maha Prasat is used as the
Buddha Image room, the middle floor is used for receiving guests and the ground
floor is used by the royal bodyguards.

The upper floor of the western hall of the Chakri Maha Prasat is used for
storing ashes of the queens and certain members of royalty, the middle floor is used
for receiving guests and the ground floor is now used as a library and a storeroom.

The upper floor of the western portico is a walkway and serves as the roof
of the middle floor: The middle floor is a hall and the ground floor which is open

to the public is a museum displaying ancient weapons.

Picture : Chakri Maha Prasat Throne Hall with the three prasats visible, front view. Eastern hall
(left), western hall (right).
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Dusit Maha Prasat Throne Hall

Dusit Maha Prasat Throne Hall is in the central part of the Grand Palace
grounds west of the Chakri Maha Prasat and is built in the early Ratanakosin style.
It is the main maha prasat of Bangkok and is used for the lying in state of deceased
kings and queens and other high-ranking members of the royal family. The corpses
of deceased royalty are brought here.The Princess Mother's body was brought here
before being cremated at the Phra Meru at Sanam Luang on 10" March 1996,

The Dusit Maha Prasat is surrounded by a wall. There are six mondop-topped
gatehouses. The Dusit Maha Prasat Halls consist of the Dusit Maha Prasat Throne
Hall, the Phimarn Rataya Throne Hall, Arphorn Phimok Throne Hall and the
Ratchakranyasapha Throne Hall. Only the Dusit Maha Prasat is open to the public.

The interior walls of the Dusit Maha Prasat Throne Hall are decorated with
Thai designs depicting the Thep Phanom. The central ceiling is octagonal in shape
and adorned with stars. The interior window and door panels depict angels holding
swords and facing each other. There are four porticoes to the building, situated on
the south, north, east and west sides. The west portico house is used to house
royal corpses before cremation. In addition, important historical and artistic
artifacts are housed in the hall including:

The wooden throne, inlaid with pearl, situated almost at the center of the hall
under Phra Nopphapadol Maha Sawetta chadra (a nine-tier umbrella). It is a square,
three-level throne, decorated with figures of giants, garudas holding nagas and
Thep Phanom.The inlaid pearl is an outstanding example of workmanship of the
Ratanakosin period.

The Rajabanja-thon bed, inlaid with pearl and located on the eastern side,
was King Rama I's bed.

Phra Banchon Bussabokemala, located in the southern part, is attached to
the building wall. It was constructed in the Fourth Reign.

(continued on next page)

Picture : Dusit Maha Prasat Throne Hall and the entrance to the mondop topped southern gate.
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Dusit Maha Prasat Throne Hall (continued)

Dusit Maha Prasat Throne Hall is considered to be classic Thai architecture.
It consists of a large hall, PhraVimarn and the Chan building at the rear: The building
is endowed with royal, Brahmanical, and Buddhist Mahayana symbolism. The prasat
extends four ways and is topped by a seven-tier mondop.

The door and window arches resemble a smaller version of the prasat.
The portico in front of the building is rather small, with its roof supported by square
columns. The gables are decorated with pictures of Phra Narai astride a garuda.
Inside is the throne, surrounded by Thep Phanom designs. King Rama | used the
Bussabokemala (lotus design throne) to receive the rulers of vassal states. The present
monarch installed the Siam Thevathiraj Buddha Image in the throne hall for the public
to worship during the Bangkok bicentennial celebrations.

The design of the prasat was copied from the Sanphet Maha Prasat at Ayutthaya.
Construction was begun in 1785.King Rama | had his coronation here but the prasat
was struck by lightning and completely burned down in 1789.The old structure had
to be dismantled and a new one, the Dusit Maha Prasat Throne Hall, constructed in
its place.

King Rama IIl made changes to the spire, while King Mongkut had the throne
attached to the southern wall and a room partition constructed. King Chulalongkorn
added an entrance on the eastern side, and King Rama VI had four columns at the
center of the prasat removed and replaced with a concrete beam as well as other
renovations. Rama IX, the present King, ordered the repainting of the inner wall and

the restoration of the building to its original Fifth Reign design.

Picture : The Dusit Maha Prasat Throne Hall, from within the palace walls.
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Arphorn Phimok Prasat Pavilion

Arphorn Phimok Prasat Pavilion is attached to the wall on the eastern side of
the Dusit Maha Prasat Throne Hall. It is a small pavilion with a front portico for
descending to the vehicle mounting platform outside of the walls, while on the west
there is a platform for mounting vehicles inside the palace.The north side opens out
onto a courtyard in front of the Dusit Maha Prasat Throne Hall while the south side
descends towards the main throne hall.

The building has beautiful design and proportion and is decorated in accordance
with traditional Thai architecture. The Department of Fine Arts displayed a replica
of the building at an international fair in Brussels, Belgium in 1958.

The Arphorn Phimok Prasat Pavilion is a single-story wooden building, with
its floor raised to the level of the top of the wall. The roof has four tiers. The roofs
of the eastern and western porticoes are of two tiers. The peak of the prasat is in
the shape of a five-level mondop.The phoenix supports the four corners of the roof
which is lined with tin and decorated with chor fa, bai raka and hang hong in the shape
of a naga. All decorations are lacquered and covered with gold leaf.

The wooden gables are carved and depict Phra Indra standing on a platform
and holding a sword in his left hand while his right hand is raised in blessing. On either
side are Thep Phanom.There is a platform for Buddha images.The ceilings are covered
with gold leaf and decorated with fretwork.

The columns are square with triple indented corners and are decorated with
pieces of golden glass. The tops of the columns are decorated with lotus flower
designs. The banisters between the columns are carved to a Thep Phanom design.

King Mongkut ordered the construction of this building for mounting vehicles.

Picture : Arphorn Phimok Prasat Pavilion, front view. Situated on the eastern wall of Dusit Maha
Prasat Throne Hall.
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Suthaisawan Prasat Throne Hall

Suthaisawan Prasat Throne Hall is on the eastern wall of the Grand Palace,
on Sanam Chai Road, opposite Saranrom Garden. It is situated between the
Thevaphitak and Sakchaisit gates. It was used as a viewing platform for grand parades
and also for viewing the training of elephants from the First Reign on. The building is
now used for granting royal public audiences, during coronations or royal weddings.

The building consists of two stories, the lower story of western design is level
with the top of the wall. The upper story is a Thai-style building. The center portico
has a wooden verandah extending from the main facade which is used for granting
public audiences.

The central roof of the portico has a five-tier prasat level in the shape of a
mondop, covered with gold leaf and decorated with glass. The roof is covered with
red tiles with green tiles at the borders and is decorated with chor fa, bai raka and
hang hong which are lacquered and decorated with gold leaf and gold colored glass.
The gables are carved with a Thai design depicting vines and leaves. The doors and
windows are wooden and the lower parts of the windows are covered with cast iron
grilles with flower motifs in the style popular in the Fifth Reign. The ceiling is made of
wood and painted bright red, covered with gold leaf and decorated with star design
fretwork. Hanging from the ceiling in each room is a lamp.The rounded Corinthian
columns supporting the structure are made of plaster and decorated with lotus
flower designs at the base and top.

King Rama | ordered the construction of the hall as an open wooden pavilion,
naming it “Plubpla Sung” which means the high pavilion. King Rama Ill added the walls
and roof in the shape of a prasat and renamed it “Suthasawan Throne Hall".
King Mongkut replaced the columns with western-style plaster columns and
renamed it “Suthaisawan Prasat Throne Hall.” King Chulalongkorn carried out more
renovations and placed statues of past kings there.The building is now restored to

its original state.

Picture : The front of Suthaisawan Prasat, on Sanam Chai Road.
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Wat Phra Sri Ratanasasadaram Museum

The museum is outside and to the south of the Grand Palace, adjacent to the
Dusit Maha Prasat Throne Hall. It houses a display of artistic objects and valuable
Buddha images, the products of master craftsmen. The building was renovated under
the direction of Princess Maha Chakri Sirindhorn, who asked royal permission to use
it as a museum in 1982.

The two-story building is rectangular in plan. The front has four freestanding
lonic columns with cabbage leaf designed capitals, fluted stems and rectangular bases.
The front gables over the entrance are in Renaissance style plaster moulds.

The lower part of the exterior walls are made of plastered brick. The upper
windows, with semi-circular archways, extend right to the floor and are decorated
with pilasters on both sides. Above the windows are curved window openings covered
with glass panels. The roof level of the building has a parapet and a Roman-style roof
covered with asbestos.

King Rama IV ordered the construction of the building to house the royal
mint and named it "Rong Kasarp Sitthikarn.” The need for a royal mint had resulted
from increased trade and the mint was founded in 1857. Machinery was imported to
mint the coins, called baht and saleung, replacing the former potduang coinage. From
1862 onward other coins were also minted here.

King Chulalongkorn ordered a larger mint to be constructed opposite the
Rong Kasarp Sitthikarn mint, but this was partly damaged by fire. In 1902 the mint
was moved to a new location and the old mint building was used as a royal bodyguards

barracks. It now serves as a museum.

Picture : The front of the Wat Phra Sri Ratanasasadaram Museum.
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Sala Sahathai Samakhom

Sala Sahathai Samakhom is a single-story western-style building, situated in
the outer section of the Grand Palace and adjacent to the Emerald Buddha Temple.
The building was used in the Seventh Reign for dinner receptions and meetings.
Nowadays Sala Sahathai Samakhom is used for granting royal public audiences.

The building was constructed in the Fifth Reign. The front part has a portico
decorated with freestanding columns and there are three entrances on this side.
There is also one door each on the eastern and western sides. Each door is reached
by a five-step marble stair and circular columns support the roof at intervals. At each
corner of the building are a pair of Doric columns with fluted stems, and square bases
and capitals. The windows have semi-circular arches. The northern and southern walls
are adorned with Doric pilasters. The door and window panels are wood, painted
greenish-blue. Above the windows are western-style stucco motifs. The central
hipped roof is covered with white tiles.

The site of Sala Sahathai Samakhom was originally the side of a foundry
during the First Reign. In 1871 King Chulalongkorn ordered the dismantling of
the foundry and the construction of a royal bodyguards officers® club, in a style similar
to those found in Batavia and which he named the “Concordia Hall.” In 1875
he transformed it into a museum. King Rama VIl had the building renovated and used

it for dinner receptions and meetings. He renamed it the “Sala Sahathai Samakhom.”

Picture : Sala Sahathai Samakhom, front view.
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Sala Luk Khun Nai

Sala Luk Khun Nai is situated in the outer section of the Grand Palace,
to the west of Wisetchaisri Gate, adjacent to the parking lot near the western entrance.
It is now used as the administrative center for palace officials.

It is a western-style two-story building with its front facing north. The main
door archway is curved with a sharp peak, in the Gothic style. The exterior walls
of both upper and lower floors have buttresses extending from each window.
The walls of the ground floor are plastered and painted cream and interspersed with
windows set at the same level as the top floor windows. The lower floor window
arches are low round curves while the top floor arches are pointed. The front
windows on the upper floor are gothic style and decorated on either side with two
Corinthian columns. Above the windows are ventilation holes covered with colored
glass. The windows are covered with wooden shutters, opening outward. The roof
is hipped and the gables are triangular and concave and decorated with the Emblem
of State of King RamaV.

The Sala Luk Khun Nai was constructed in the First Reign for meetings of high
officials, who were called “Luk Khun Na Sala.” The building was also used to receive
vassal rulers and foreign guests before the royal audience.

King Rama Il replaced the original wooden building with a brick one.
King Mongkut constructed an armory for storing ceremonial cannons, such as
the Phraya Tanee cannon. King Chulalongkorn ordered the removal of both original
buildings and replaced them with three two-story buildings connected by porticoes.

In the same reign, the Thai-style roof was replaced with a western-style roof,

Picture : Sala Luk Khun Nai, front view.
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